
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 

DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

Date: 24 August 2021 

 

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 1 September 2021 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Caddsdown Industrial Park, Clovelly 
Road, EX39 3BE. 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 

all External Overview & Scrutiny meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will 
be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

To: Councillor J Manley (Chair) 
Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors: S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, S Newton, 
P Pennington and R Wiseman 

 
Non elected Members: L Bach and K Baker 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 21st July 2021.  
 

3.   Public Participation  

 15 minute period for public contributions 
 



 
 

 

4.   Action List (Page 9) 

5.   Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered.  
 

6.   Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II  

7.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair  

8.   LEESAR Partnership - NDADA and Splitz  

 An opportunity to hear from LEESAR Partnership about their work in relation to 
mental health issues 

 

9.   Partnership Evaluation  

 To review the Partnership Evaluation process.  

 

10.   Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Pages 10 - 11) 

11.   Exclusion Of The Public  

 The Chair to move:-  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 

 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 
 

Wednesday, 21 July 2021 - 6.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor J Manley (Chair) 

  
 Councillors S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, 

S Newton, P Pennington and R Wiseman 

  
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 J Williams - Public Health & Housing Manager 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

 L Bach - Guest 
 K Baker -  Guest 
  

71.    INTRODUCTION FROM NEW COMMITTEE CHAIR  
 

The new Chair of External Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor 
Manley, welcomed attendees and introduce herself. She took the opportunity to 
thank Councillor Phil Pennington for his previous work chairing the External 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee.   
 

72.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Non-Elected Member Phil Topham 

and Vice Chair Councillor Cottle-Hunkin. 
 

73.    MINUTES  
 

The Chair ran through the minutes of the previous meeting page by page with 

committee members. No issues were raised.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Chris Leather, seconded by Councillor Newton 
and -   
 

Resolved:  
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2021 be agreed and signed as 
a correct record.  
 

(Vote: For – 6, Abstain – 2) 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

74.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

No requests for public participation were received for the meeting.  
 

75.    ACTION LIST  
 

There were no outstanding actions from the action list.  Councillor Manley 

explained that this was due to a new Chair taking being appointed and future 
work would be discussed as part of the Forward Plan agenda item. 

 
76.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and 
when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 

 
77.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  

 

There were no part II items for the meeting.  
 

78.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

No urgent matters were bought forward.   
 

79.    TOGETHER DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICE  
 

Joni Nash introduced herself as the Head of Service and Development at 

Together.  A commissioned service for people with complex needs and a drug 
and alcohol service for over 18s.  The service covers Devon excluding Torbay 

and Plymouth.  
 
The service works with people who have substance misuse issues and with 

people who have complex needs, this can include homelessness and mental 
health.  Together work alongside mental health services providing interim 

psycho-social support, which covers safety planning and harm reduction work; 
helping service users to identify who to go to for support.  
 

Joni provided an overview of the services that Together provide in the Torridge 
district.  She also highlighted how the service fits within the provision locally, 

where the gaps are and how the service support people who are referred in as a 
result. There are large waiting lists within Community Mental Health services 
currently, it was explained how this was managed and the work taking place to 

identify funding streams.   
 

Joni went on to highlight how the Covid pandemic has impacted their work, with 
less people being able to move through treatment due to the risks involved in 
exiting their mental health treatment.   

 
The Chair thanked Joni for her introduction and asked members if they had any 

questions. The discussion is summarised below.  

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

 
The Together Service was based in Bideford, but recently moved to Riverside 

Court in Barnstaple, covering North Devon. They also have a satellite base that 
they work from in Ilfracombe and a satellite base in Bideford is also being 

explored.  
 
Referrals can be by way of walk in, or people can phone. The service aims to 

screen anyone within 24 to 48 hours. There is a waiting list for those coming into 
treatment, which dates back to March 2021. Joni explained that the waiting list is 

long because Health and Social Care are struggling to recruit to positions. They 
have links with GPs to provide shared care and a Hospital Liaison Officer who is 
based at the hospital each day.   

 
During discussions Joni highlighted the different care pathways available locally 

and the types of interventions available to people depending on their age and 
need – she highlighted other projects they work alongside and some of the take 
up they now have because of service closure.    

 
Members asked about the impact of Covid on the Together Service. The service 

has seen an increase in alcohol referrals during the Pandemic, more so with 
lower level alcohol use.  
 

The work has been phone-based and has made them more accessible, so more 
people have progressed through treatment. This has resulted in more successful 

outcomes than prior to Covid. However, the service is starting to see an 
increase in people experiencing anxiety now lockdown is lifting. Joni explained 
how the service is responding as a result.  

 
Furthermore, some projects have been based online since the Pandemic started 

and this can be a barrier for those who are digitally poor. The Together Project 
have continued to see the highest risk people who wanted to be seen face to 
face throughout the pandemic, but group work has been harder to arrange 

because of restrictions.   
 

Attendees discussed the relationship between mental health and substance use 
and how people access these services. It was explained that Together Service 
will work alongside people to reduce their using, so they can then access mental 

health treatment. This is currently hampered by waiting lists and they are holding 
people for a long time at the moment to keep them safe and well.   

 
The outcomes for service users are one of the best in the Country for ‘substance 
misuse successfully exited’. There are still those who come back for further 

support and the service use various coping techniques to help these people. 
This was identified as a gap in provision and a funding gap.  

 
The Together Service receives funding from Public Health via Devon County 
Council and the Government – they are the only locally commissioned service 

covering this area of need. They work alongside other commissioned mental 
health services to plan local responses and manage challenges.  

 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

They are part of Safer Devon Partnership and share information with the 
partnership regarding referrals, the service also recently worked with the 

partnership to provide needle vending machines to improve out of hours access.  
 

The Together Service also work closely with Police and have recently been 
successful in securing £370 thousand of £80 million in Government funding for 
the Criminal Justice System – this is to support work with the most vulnerable 

cases linked to prison and the criminal justice system.  
 

Together Service work locally with the Rough Sleeping Initiative, funded by 
Torridge District Council, they use this funding for a worker who works with 
hardest to reach people. This is short term funding linked to outcomes.   

 
Joni confirmed that the Together Service has Charity status and Councillor 

Manley arranged to email over details of relevant funding streams she is aware 
of.  
 

The members asked if there was more Council’s could do. Joni explained this 
was the first Council meeting Together Service had been asked to attend and 

she felt this was a positive step to promoting partnership working and 
understanding the community.  
 

Joni explained how they are meeting the challenges of staffing the service, 
especially in North Devon.  She highlighted that the service in North Devon is 

currently fully staffed and building their case work.   
 
Members asked about the use of supported housing and substance misuse. 

Joni highlighted the importance of partnership working and an example of good 
practice in Exeter.  However, the main issue continues to be gaining housing 

stock to set up these kinds of initiatives.       
 
The meeting went on to discuss how planning can be used to promote positive 

outcomes for service users. Building spaces that make life more valuable and 
having these environments more accessible to all.  

 
Chair thanks Joni for attending the meeting and attendees discussed how there 
should be a positive outcome for services who attend and whether there was 

scope to advertise the service.  
 

It was agreed that Democratic Services would pass Councillor Hawkins the 
contact details for the Together Service, to share with Bideford Town Council.  
 

It was suggested that there should be some officer input at future Committee 
Meetings to gain an understanding of how Council staff link with our partners 

and support their work.  
 
Janet Williams provided an overview of how Torridge District Council link with 

the Together Service.  
 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

There are links on a strategic level on commissioning of services and Public 
Health work on a countywide drug strategy, as well as links via the Safe Devon 

Partnership in relation to community safety. 
 

On a day to day basis the frontline staff at the Council link in with the Together 
Service and will be referring and will encourage their clients to access their 
services. Together have provided training for staff so they have an 

understanding of the treatment pathways.  
 

It was suggested and agreed that the next Committee meeting will invite an 
officer from Torridge District Council, who works with NDADA and Splitz, to 
provide an overview of how the Council link with the services.  

 
80.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  

 

Councillor Manley explained the aim of the forward plan and asked member of 
the committee for their suggestions on issues that should be covered at future 

meetings.    
 

Items that were agreed for the forward plan:  

 Amalgamation of the of the Norther Devon Healthcare Trust and the Royal 
Devon & Exeter Hospital Trust. Specifically looking at how services will be 

delivered in the local area and how they are working.   
 

 The new Transformation Programme was also highlighted as an issue to 
consider. 

 

 The contract for Leisure Services and Grounds Maintenance should also be 
considered as items on the forward plan in the run up to 2022.  

 

 An update on the progression of the Play Strategy, with an invite extended to 

Shaun Kearney.  Staci to contact Shaun Kearney to find out if there will be 
an update in September, or if this item should be added to the November 
Committee meeting.  

 

 Consider the joint report with North Devon on larger play spaces like sports 

fields and Multi Use Games Areas, which are considered lacking in North 
Devon area.   

 

 An annual review of agreed issues, which are booked into the forward plan, 
with an invite extended to the relevant Lead Member. 

 

 First Responders - Fire & Rescue, the Ambulance Service and Air 

Ambulance provision. Considering response time and how define between 
urgent and non urgent. It was highlighted that the Ambulance Service were 
currently very stretched and this should be considered when adding to the 

forward plan.  
 

There was a discussion around recruitment to health and social care roles and 
the lack of affordable housing locally. It was confirmed this was discussed at the 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

recent Housing Workshop and a report would be presented to Full Council as a 
result. Chair suggested waiting for the outcome of the Housing report before 

considering this for the Forward Plan.  
 

Attendees agreed that Janet would contact Toby Davies and confirm the details 
for the joint Community Safety Partnership meeting in October and, depending 
on the outcome, the environment item on the same date would be considered 

for Committee in January.  
 

81.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

There were no Part II items so Chair thanked all for attending. 

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and closed at 7.10 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  

 
 

Page 8



ACTION LIST 

Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee – 21 July 2021 
 

Minute 

No. 

Raised by 
Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

79. Councillor 
Manley 

To forward on details of relevant 
funding streams to Joni from the 

Together Project.  

Councillor 

Manley 
  

79. Councillor 
Hawkins 

To email contact details for the 
Together Project to Councillor 

Hawkins. 

Dem Services Complete  

79.  Councillor 
Newton 

To invite an officer from Torridge 
District Council to attend the next 
Committee meeting and provide 

members with an overview of how 
the council works with NDADA and 

Splitz – who will be attending to talk 
about their work on domestic and 
sexual violence in the Torridge area.  

Dem Services Complete  

80.  To contact Toby Davies regarding 
plans for the Community Safety 
Partnership joint meeting with North 

Devon, which is on the forward plan 
for October 2021.   

Janet Williams    

80.  To discuss with Shaun Kearney 

possible date to attend External & 
update on the Play Strategy – 
September or November 2021 

meetings were suggested by 
members.  

Staci Dorey Complete  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/2022 
 

Cycle 1 
9 June 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 2 
21 July 2021 

6.00pm 

Cycle 3 
1 Sept. 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 4 
13 Oct. 2021 

6pm 

 

Cycle 5 
24 Nov 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 6 
19 Jan 2022 

6pm 

Cycle 7 
9 March 2022 

2pm 

Cycle 8 
27 April 2022 

6pm 

 
 

 

- Mental health post 

Covid.  –Together 
(Drug/alcohol service) 

 

 

 
Mental Health post 

Covid.  Leesar project 
– NDADA and SPLITZ, 

domestic and sexual 

violence services. 

 
Environment / 

Biosphere / Drainage 
and Sewage- joint 
meeting with North 

Devon Council 

 
Citizen’s Advice 

Bureau – money and 
debt management 

advice 

 
Play Strategy Update  

 
 

  

 
  

Community Safety 
Partnership 

   
 

 
UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN  

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy 
 

Sectors 
Agriculture & Fisheries – NFU / support organisations  

Agriculture Bill – invite MP 
The economy (national / local) 
Education – to be broken down into smaller segments 

Employment (NEETS, Petroc) / Working with young people / apprenticeships 
Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness) 

Organisations 
Bideford Chamber of Commerce 
North Devon+/Leader5 

Infrastructure 
Empty buildings 

Industrial Units and local economy 
Transport (buses, Link Road) 

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities  
 

Concerns 
Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers 

Ambulance response times in relation to downgrading to Category 2 of serious conditions such as 
stroke and chest pain (from Bideford / Northam AAG) 
First Responder response times and triage. Fire & Rescue, Ambulance and Air Ambulance 

Amalgamation of Northern Devon Healthcare Trust and Royal Devon & Exeter Hospital Trust and the 
transformation programme.  

Fuel poverty 
Pharmacies 
Resourcing of community policing including PCSOs 

Staffing at North Devon Hospital 
Social housing landlords 

Leisure Services 
Play Strategy Update 
Multi Use Games Areas and Larger Play Spaces – joint report with North Devon 

Organisations 

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 10



Burton Art Gallery 
Healthwatch 
Leisure Services (1610):  Joint T&F update and separate scrutiny by External  

Suzanne Tracey – North Devon Healthcare Trust 
TTVS 

Quality Environment 
 

Concerns 
Housing developments and water run off 

Overflow issues at Appledore / Westward Ho 
Surface water draining / Flooding 
Water Quality – Sewerage 

Grounds Maintenance Contract 
Organisations 

AONB / Biosphere 
Environment Agency and Devon County Council (surface water draining / flooding) 
Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore / Westward Ho)  

Effective and Customer Focused Council  
 

Mr Topham:  Liaison with external bodies / Partner Evaluation Form for 12 month review. 
 

  

 

Health, well-being and community safety organisations 

Office of the Police and Crime Commisioner 
Devon safeguarding adults board 
Devon children’s and family board 

North Devon Biosphere 
Active Devon 

South West Water 
Western Power Distribution 
Surestart 

BBfA (better business for all) 
South West Growth Hub 
South West Armed Forces Covenant Partnership Board 

TTVS 
RSPCA 

 

Trading standards 
Environment Agency 
Devon Anti Slavery Partnership/ Unseen 

One Northern Devon 
Devon Somerset Fire and Rescue 

Local resilience forum 
Lendology (formally Wessex Loans) 
361 Energy 

Integr8 
Recovery Devon 
Space 

Encompass South West 
Westward Housing 

Livewest Housing 
Bideford Street Pastors 
Devon Libraries unlimited 

 

 

P
age 11


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Action List
	10 Consideration Of The Forward Plan

